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The History of The

- Conneaut
Railroad Museum

The instituting of a railroad museum in the
City of Conneaut at the location designated was
the idea of Eugene Lambert, manager of the local
office of the East Ohio Gas Co. in Conneaut.

The work was initially carried out through a
small group of men including John Phipps, Michael
Arcaro and Herbert Hopkins, who were interested
in the idea of developing a museum of this type
since the heritage and economy of our town has for
so many years been so closely connected with
railroading.

So many of our forefathers have worked with
the railroads serving this area that it was felt there
would be a great deal of interest within the com-
munity to support such an effort. Initially, the
group was very small since at that time only a
few men could do the necessary work. This com-
prised the obtaining of the locomotive from the
Nickel Plate Railroad, contacting and receiving
the hopper car and caboose from the Bessémer
and Lake Erie Railroad, and making the arrange-
ments with the New York Central Railroad con-
cerning-the land and the depot.

Negotiations for all of the above were conducted
over a three-year period, finally consumating in
August, 1963. Throughout these negotiations, Con-
neaut City council had to pass various ordin-
ances, for the gifts of equipment and'the lease of
property are all to the City of Conneaut and the peo-
ple of the community, not to any one group.

When finally in August everything appeared
to be ready, the work of getting the equipment in-
stal'ed was started. The Bessemer and Lake Erie
Railroad donated the rail. This was delivered to
the site by Daniels truck lines, and unloaded with
the use of a crane from U. S. Scrap Iron and Metals
in Conneaut. The limestone division of U. S. Steel
donated 100 tons of limestone to be used for bal-
last. The New York Central Railroad gave the
City of Conneaut a carload of railroad ties for
the track.

At this point, the Nickel Plate track crew, under
the direction of Mr. Graziano, donated three Sat-
urdays of their time to lay the necessary rail. Prior
to this Trutwin Excavating had leveled the site for
the rail. Subway Coal Co. helped move the ballast
into place at the time of the laying of the rail, and
Conneaut Concrete Products helped truck the lime-
stone to the site,

The locomotive was sent to Chicago, where
it was completely refurbished by the Nickel Plate

AUG. 15, 1964 — GROUNDS, EAST END, LOOKING
WEST TO DEPOT.

AUG. 22, 1964 — LOOKING WEST, FROM GRADED
SPUR SECTION.

AUG. 22, 1964 — LOOKING WEST, FROM GRADED
SPUR SECTION.

AUG. 29, 1964 — LOOKING WEST, TO DEPOT, FROM
EAST END. LIMESTONE PILES IN FOREGROUND.



Railroad, and subsequently returned to the City
of Conneaut on Sept. 24, At this point Round-
house Foreman Brown went to work and with his
men, completely refurbished the cab of the loco-
motive.

While this was occuring, Cyclone Division of
U. S. Steel was installing the fence around the
site. This was made possible by the more than
$3,000 which was donated by local industry, mer-
chants, and others.

On Sunday, October 11, 1964, the Bessemer and
Lake Erie Railroad delivered to the Nickel Plate
the hopper car and caboose completely redone and
ready for location on the site.

On Tuesday, October 13, the Nickel Plate Rail-
road assembled the “train” and brought it to the
New York Central interchange, where a New York
Central engine pulled the train to the site,

Wednesday morning, the New York Central
installed the temporary rail and the equipment was
placed in its permanent display area.

All of the above is actually a gift to the City
of Conneaut, and its citizens by the trahsportation
industry — a gift which has cost us nothing, but
would be valued well in excess of $50,000. This
is most gratifying and one with which we can all
be proud.

And actually, the museum project has only
started. It was one of the thoughts of the people
involved in this work initially that it would create
interest in our community. This has already been
done. Letters, and people, have already come from
surrounding states to see the equipment. We are
all helping to draw attention to our town through
the community-side effort involved.

Many communities throughout the country have
been donated a locomotive, usually of a much
smaller size. Conneaut is the only community
which has a train and a museum such as this.

A formal dedication took place May 15, 1966.
The equipment is on display for all to see.

It is possible to go through the caboose and
also to see the cab of the locomotive. These units
look just as they were when in actual use not too
many years ago. )

The depot will be repainted, and refinished on
the inside as time and money allow. The large
rooms in the depot have been turned into a museum
in which are placed items which relate the proud
heritage of our city’s past. It is the feeling of
everyone involved that we have an attraction in
our town that will draw people from far and wide.
One which belongs to all of us in the community.

“The Nickel Plate Road Operating Department,
under Charles E. Yarnell, superintendent, and E.
S. Kershaw, general yardmaster, were responsi-
ble for moving the equipment.

AUG. 29, 1964 — LOOKING WEST, FROM STREET SIDE,
SHOWING DEPOT AND NYC TRACKAGE.

SEPT. 12. 1964 — TRACKMEN CARRYING TIES, LOOK-
ING WEST TO DEPOT.

SEPT. 12, 1964 — PUTTING TIES IN PLACE, LOOKING
WEST TO DEPOT.

SEPT. 12, 1964 — LAYING THE RAILS, LOOKING
SOUTH-WEST TO DEPOT.



SEPT. 12, 1964 — LOOKING EAST, FROM NORTH-EAST OCT. 9, 1964 — LOOKING EAST, FROM EAST END
CORNER OF DEPOT. OF DEPOT.

SEPT. 19, 1964 — LOOKING WEST, FROM EAST END OCT. 9, 1964 — LOOKING NORTHEAST, FROM SOUTH-
OF RAIL END, SHOWS DEPOT. EAST CORNER OF DEPOT.

SEPT. 26, 1964 — GRADER DUMPING BALLAST LOOK-
ING EAST. CHANGE.

SEPT. 26, 1964 — GRADER DUMPING BALLAST, LOOK- OCT. 14, 1964 — THE PANEL TRACK IS LAID INTO
ING WEST TO DEPOT. POSITION.
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OCT. 14, 194 — THE TRAIN BEING BACKED ONTO
THE SPUR PANEL TRACK.

e

OCT. 14, 1964 — THE CABOOSE 1S ABOUT READY TO
ROLL ONTO THE MUSEUM RAILS.

OCT. 14, 1964 — THE 755 IS EASED GENTLY AROUND
THE EXTREMELY SHARP CURVE.

?’I'J‘R CHRISTMAS DISPLAY AT THE MUSEUM — DEC.

THE DEPOT AND GENERAL AREA OF THE MU-
SEUM — MARCH 1965

The History of The
New York, Chicago

& St. Louis
Railroad Company

“THE NICKEL PLATE ROAD”

The history of The Nickel Plate Road was one
of aggressive railroad men; men who loved the
rough and tumble of keen competition; men who
knew what it was to “make connections” and arrive
“on schedule,” for in these two phrases can be
summed up the very essence of the existence of
the Nickel Plate Road.

This was a railroad conceived in 1880 by what
was known as the seney syndicate. A group of men
who conceived a railroad that would threaten the
dominance of the Vanderbilt’s Lake Shore & Mich-
igan Southern Railroad in the burgeoning mid-
west. This railroad was spectacular from its in-
ception. The road was built complete in a matter
of 500 days connecting Buffalo on the east with
Chicago on the west with 513 miles of what was
then, and still remains today, the best engineered



and maintained railroad trackage in the country.
This road was built through a region that was be-
ginning to develop and would become the heart of
the industrial United States. The railroad was
built without the aid of any government or state
support and developed by men who were willing
to gamble their own funds. Much of the land that
was purchased was bought at inflated prices, but
the men who made up this syndicate were deter-
mined to have a railroad second to none when
completed, thus allowmg nothing to stand in their
way.

The first train operated on this railroad on Oc-
tober 23, 1882. The arrival of this evidence of
competition to the Vanderbilts interests was greet-
ed with enthusiasm all along the route, but the
enthusiastic townspecple were soon greeted with
the news that the complete railroad had been pur-
chased by the Vanderbilts.

The Nickel Plate was run as a poor stepchild of
the Lake Shore and Michigan Southern Railway
until 1916. However, in this period of time, despite
the fact that it was allowed to subsist only on the
leavings of the parent road, it soon established a
name for itself as a railroad that was capable of
moving fast freight over its system on time, The
L. 8. & M. S. many times was too busy to bother
to handle the perishable meat shipments from the
west through Chicago and then to the east. Con-
sequently, these shipments were given to the Nickel
Plate. Knowing, that if it were to survive, it had to
handle such shipments to please the shippers, the
road soon became known as the “Meat Express
Line.” It was recognized by shippers as the railroad
that kept a schedule. In the area of passenger train
travel, the L. S. & M. S. kept all its fast trains on
its own rails; and the passenger trains of the Nickel
Plate became known as the trains to ride if one
wished to have comfort, convenience, and service.

In 1915 the Clayton Anti-Trust Act was passed,
and the Attorney General of the United States
notified the New York Central that control of the
Nickel Plate was a violation of this act. As a
_ result, the Van Sweringen Brothers made their en-
trance into the railroad industry on July 5, 1916,
when they purchased the Nickel Plate from the
New York Central for 8.5 million dollars. This was
the result of the two brothers attempting to ob-
tain five miles of right-of-way for a rapid transit
line in Cleveland and ending up with a 513 mile
railroad. The Van Sweringens immediately placed
in control of their new holdings J. J. Bernet under
whose diligent direction the road soon became a
profitable enterprise.

Soon thereafter in 1922, the Nickel Plate took
over control of the stock of the Toledo, St. Louis
and Western (Clover Leaf). This acquisition was a
compliment to both railroads and gave the Nickel
Plate a terminal in St. Louis. At the same time,

NICKEL PLATE NO. 1 ENGINE

ROCKY RIVER ABOUT 18%0



the Vans were successful in purchasing the Lake
Erie and Western Railroad from the New York
Central System; and this they consolidated into
their new and expanding Nickel Plate Railroad.

Now the Nickel Plate had three “gateways” to

the west at St. Louis, Peoria, and Chicago as well
as being able to service much more of the rapidly
growing heartland of this country. In 1923 the
Vans, through the Nickel Plate, exercised another
option and obtained control of the Chesapeake and
Ohio Railroad Company. With this acquisition
they were now able to reach the Eastern Seaboard,
and the Vans were seen to be assembling a gigantic
railroad empire. o '

In 1925 the Van Sweringens went before the
I. C. C. to ask permission to consolidate all of their
railroad holdings into one large Nickel Plate Sys-
tem. At that time, newspapers of the era forecast
that there would be four great railroad systems
serving the east, namely the New York Central,
The Pennsylvania, The Baltimore and Ohio, and
.The Nickel Plate. The commission turned down
the Van Sweringen’s plans on the basis of the
financial arrangements involved. The Vans then
changed their tactics and set about making their
plans with the Chesapeake and Ohio as the back-
bone of their new system. In 1937 the reins of con-
trol of the Van Sweringen Railroad empire, which
included the Nickel Plate, were passed to the Ball
interests of Muncie, Indiana.

Throughout this period, the Nickel Plate had
successfully recovered from its domination by the
New York Central System and had become a pro-
fitable enterprise known more than ever as the
Shippers Railroad, a railroad for the handling of
fast merchandise freight. It was in the later part of
this era that a new design was conceived for a
general - purpose, high - speed steam locomotive
which could serve the railroad efficiently and han-
dle" high-speed trains with a minimum amount of

maintenance. From such .requirements grew the

now famous 2-8-4 Berkshire 700 series steam loco-
motives. An example of this engine is on display
" at the Conneaut Railway Historical Museum. No.
755 was delivered to the railroad in 1944 and do-
nated to the city of Conneaut, Ohio, in 1964 by
the last president of the Nickel Plate, Myron B.
Phipps. .

From 1937. through the war years the Nickel
Plate was controlled by Robert Young through
Allegheny Corporation and the C & O Railroad.
In 1945 an attempt was made to merge the Nickel
Plate into the C & O, but this failed for approval
by the stockholders of the Nickel Plate. As a re-
sult, in 1947 the C & O divested itself of any
interest in the Nickel Plate. For the next' 17
years until its ‘merger into the Norfolk and West-
ern Railway, the Nickel Plate was controlled by
no outside interests. In 1949 the Nickel Plate took

#159 CLASS N-3

#42 CLASS P CONNEAUT, OHIO

.



over control of the Wheeling and Lake Erie Rail-
road which operated through the coal fields of
Ohio and into Wheeling, West Virginia. With this
acquisition, the Nickel Plate had reached its zenith
and had become the perfect example of how a well
run railroad should operate. At this time, the
Nickel Plate comprised some 2,200 miles of well-
knit rail line, serving and connecting the main
distribution points of the midwest with those of
the east.

Its density of traffic accounted for 86 percent of
the tonnage hauled being manufactured items and
minerals. In addition to this, the Nickel Plate con-
tinued to win, and hold, a larger share of the
perishable high-speed freight business to the east.
The road was a profit maker, showing 21 million
dollars in 1950 and was cited by BUSINESS
WEEK MAGAZINE as the perfect example that
railroading can pay. The road, in addition to being
a perfect example of a good investment, was also
an operating railroad man’s dream. It was the
perfect example of track maintained in optimum
condition at all times, of steam engines that could
pace and. beat diesel engine performance day in
and day out, of operating schedules that competi-
tor New York Central could not meet on their
paralleling four-track right of way.

The Nickel Plate road was a family railroad. Tt
was a railroad of men who came to work to run a
railroad and spent the rest of their life doing it. The
Nickel Plate spawned in 1907 the Nickel Plate
veterans association which was the first such or-
ganization of its type in the country. This was a
railroad who was proud of its people, and the
people were proud of its railroad; and both were
proud of their beautiful motive power which
reached its peak in the famous 700 series Berk-
shire Steam Locomotive. Little noticed or observed
is the fact that this road brought out of the Ameri-
can locomotive shops in Dunkirk, just two weeks
after NYC, a beautiful 4-6-4 series L-1 passenger
engine which was .the equal to NYC's famous
“Hudson” counterparts. This was a railroad, which
at the time of its merger into the Norfolk and
Western railway, had completed 82 years of the
most efficient and profitable railroading that this
country has ever seen.

Its contribution to American transportation his- _

tory and to the communities that it served was one
of a stellar performer. Through its contribution of
taxes, payrolls, and community service, the Nickel
Plate and the men of this railroad were an institu-
tion without equal. This was the zenith of rail-
roading, a railroad who never defaulted on a debt,
produced dividends to the delight of its sharehold-
ers, met the payrolls of its people and delivered the
goods on time. This was truly a railroad man’s
railroad and a shipper’s delight.

#52 CLASS B-ll-a CONNEAUT, OHIO MAY 4, 1938

#131 CLASS N-1 CONNEAUT, OHIO

#160 CLASS K-la CONNEAUT, OHIO DEC. 11, 1946






#668 CLASS H-6f CASCADE, PA. APRIL 10, 1940

#747 CLASS 2-8-4, WITH EASTBOUNDSFAST FREIGHT
AT PAINESVILLE OHIO JULY 24, 1947

#755 CLASS §-2 WESTFIELD N.Y AUG 1946

#7179, CLASS 2-84, CROSSING BRIDGE WITH AN EAST-
113904;JN'D FAST FREIGHT CONNEAUT, OHIO DEC. 3,

ORIGINAL GROUP CONNEAUT SHOPS

TRANSFER TABLE AT CONNEAUT

#7719 WAS THE LAST STEAMER BOUGHT BY THE
NKP AND THE LAST STEAMER TO BE BUILT BY THE
LIMA LOCOMOTIVE WORKS.



History — The New York
Central Railroad Co.

The story of the New York Central is one of the
most fascinating romances of achievement in Amer-
ican history.

In 1812, the vision of a well-to-do explorer, scien-
tist, and author of English origin gave birth to the
first of the 546 little railroads which eventually
merged to become the New York Central System.

Convinced that flanged wheels on iron rails
would provide the most efficient means of trans-
portation, George W. Featherstonhaugh of Duanes-
burgh, Schenectady County, New York, joined with
Stephen Van Rensselaer, an influential Albany res-
ident, in applying to the New York State Legisla-
ture for a charter for a 17-mile railroad between
Albany and Schenectady. The road was to be
known as the Mohawk and Hudson Rail Road.

Although the charter was granted April 7, 1826,
construction did not start until 1830. The first
train, drawn by the DeWitt Clinton locomotive,
was operated August 9, 1831

In the seven years, from 1832 to 1839, the Mo-
hawk & Hudson earned $692,800, more than eight-
tenths of which was derived from passenger traffic.

In 1831, a charter also had been sought for a
railroad between -Schenectady and Buffalo. The
Legislature turned it down. Vast sums had been
spent in building the Erie Canal and the Legisla-
ture did not propose to permit competition..

In 1836, however, in response to urgent demands
from the public, a 77-mile railroad between Schen-
ectady and Utica was authorized.

Enthusiasm for this new means of transporta-
tion grew from day to day. A road between Ro-
chester and Batavia was opened in 1837; between
Utica and Syracuse in 1839; between Auburn and
Buffalo in 1842. In 1843, the final gaps were closed,
making it possible to travel from Albany to Buffalo
in 30 hours without having to change cars more
than six times.

Altogether there were ten small railroads link-
ing the two cities. All were operated under inde-
pendent ownership. It was generally agreed, how-
ever, that they could be more efficiently operated
under a single management.

Thus, on July 6, 1853, the Legislature granted
them authority to consolidate into a single cor-
poration under the name of “The New York Cen-
tral Railroad Company.” The new management
assumed office on August 1. Erastus Corning, a
former director of the Mohawk and Hudson, and
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one-time Mayor of Albany, State Senator and Con-
gressman, served as the first president.

There were no rail connections between New
York City and Albany, however. Transportation
between those two cities was on the palatial steam-
boats which had been plying up and down the
Hudson River long before the Mohawk & Hud-
son was opened. But largely through the vision
and determination of a small number of men in
Poughkeepsie, the Hudson River Railroad came
into being. After many rebuffs and much opposi-
tion, the Legislature finally consented in 1846 to
its construction. In 1849, the new line was in oper-
ation between New York and Poughkeepsie and in
1851 it reached East Albany.

Some miles away another railroad was also ex-
tending northward. The New York & Harlem
Railroad, chartered in 1831, ran through West-
chester County and by 1852 was in operation be-
tween New York City and Chatham, 23 miles
from Albany.

It was at this time that Cornel:us Vanderbilt,
popularly known as the “Commodore” because of
his steamboat operations, entered the picture. In
the 1850’s, he started to buy stocks and bonds of
the New York & Harlem. In 1857, he became a
director of the railroad and in 1863 its president.

The creative genius of the Commodore saw that
these two railroads should be united with the New
York Central Railroad under one management. He
bought heavily into the Hudson River Railroad
stock and with a large block under his control, was
elected president in 1865.

The merger of the Hudson River Railroad and
the New York Central Railroad was effected on
September 15, 1869, and on November 1 of that
same year, Commodore Vanderbilt was elected
president of the new company — the New York
Central and Hudson River Railroad Company.

In 1871, a connecting link was completed along
the Harlem River, giving the Hudson River Rail-
road a connection with the Harlem Railroad, thus
making it possible to run passenger trains from
the former line into the then new Grand Central

Depot.

Although there appeared to be no need for west-
ern expansion, since the New York Central & Hud-
son River Railroad was prosperous, it was only
natural for the growing Central to search for
western connections as gateways for the inter-
change of the heavy traffic moving between the
Atlantic seaboard and the west.

The logical links for the New York Central, in
order to reach the west, were Buffalo and Erie
Ra_i]road. running between those two cities; the
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Lake Shore cor_inecting'Erie,& Toledo, and the
Michigan Southern and Northern Indiana, linking
Toledo and Chicago. ;

These three lines formed a na_turél route and
their consolidation under the name of the Lake
Shore & Michigan Southern Railroad eventually
became the.western extension of the New York
Central to Chicagé. In 1873, Commodore Vander-
bilt became president of the consolidated road,
familiarly called the “Lake -Shore.”

With the lease of the Boston & Albany Railroad
in 1899, it was then possible to travel on a through
line from Boston to Chicago.

In 1914, the New York Central and Hudson'

River Railroad, the Lake Shore & Michigan South-

_ern Railroad, and nine of their subsidiaries were
consolidated into one company, under the name of
- The New York Central Railroad Company.

. Virtual completion of the present New York
Central came in 1930, when the New York Central
leased’ the Cleveland, Cincinnati, Chicago and St.
Louis Railroad and the Michigan Central Rail-
road for 99 years. These lines linked the eastern
seaboard with St. Louis and Chicago.

Commodore Vanderbilt died January 4, 1877 at
the agé of 82. He lived to see his master dream
of a great trunk-line railroad between the sea and
the Great Lakes realized. He has been called the
first of the empire builders.

The New York Central reached its financial
zenith in the 1920’s. The slow and tedious road
back to financial stability after the Depression of
the 30’s was quickened by America's participation
and later entry into World War II. But the return
to peace with its resulting lower level of traffic,
aggravatel by increased competition, again saw
the railroad threatened by insalvency.

In 1954, after a colorful proxy fight which would
have delighted the Commodore, management of the
Central changed hands. Alfred E. Perlman, of the
Denver & Rio Grande Western Railroad, was
named president and chief executive officer.

In summarizing the railroad’'s progress during
the past twelve years, one publication declared
that the Central has turned from a “ponderous,
nearly bankrupt, passenger-oriented trunk line”
into a “lean, ultra-efficient ton-mile producer.”

Of prime significance in this transition is the de-
velopment of a young, aggressive group of well-
trained administrators. In addition, departments
specializing in technical ;research, marketing re-
search and cybernetics have been added. This
change has revolutionized methods, equipment and
pricing practices of the corripany.

295 CLASS U-3-¢ COALBURG,0HIO0O MARCH 1923

=4595 CLASS M-1 COALBURG, OHIO 1926

#1405 CLASS C-12 HIGHBRIDGE, N.Y. AUG. 1920

12



The Central also diversified its transportation
activities by organizing a motor carrier subsi-
diary, the New York Central Transport Company,
and it developed the Flexi-Van concept whereby
the same container may be interchanged with all
modes of transportation.

Some of Central's major activities during this
period include:

=

The expenditure of more than a half-bil-
lion dollars to modernize its plant and faci-
lities.

The conversion from a four-track mainline
railroad to a more efficient two-track sys-

tem by the installation of Centralized Traf-

fic Control.

The construction of four electronically op-
erated freight yards, directed by sixty-four
foot analog computers, which have re-
placed sixty obsolete yards.

The establishment of the largest railroad
technical research laboratory.

The complete dieselization of the railroad’s
motive power.

The installation of a radically new com-
munications network — the second largest
industrial communications system in the
world.

#4658 CLASS J40-g YOUNGSTOWN, OHIO 1918

#5829 CLASS G-43-d YOUNGSTOWN, OHIO 1919

#3317 CLASS K-3-p LINNDALE, OHIO SEPT. 25, 1934
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#1366 CLASS NE-?—& YOUNGSTOWN, OHIO 1919 - #5272 CLASS J-1-¢ CONNEAUT, OHIO AUG. 6, 1947

#5449 CLASS J3-a CHICAGO, ILL.

#2070 CLASS F-12-a KENTON, OHIO 1927

St o [T R - (=

#4636 CLASS K-3-g COLLINWOOD, OHIO SEPT. 14, 1937 #3009 CLASS L-3-a CONNEAUT, OHIO MAR. 13, 1947

e~ -
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#42 CLASS 2-44 TANK WITH A SUBURBAN PASSEN-
GER TRAIN AT HIGHBRIDGE, N.Y. AUG. 1920

#2725 CLASS 482 WITH A SOUTHBOUND DRAG
FREIGHT NEAR DORSET, OHIO MAR. 21, 1946

WO, -

# 3109 CLASS 4-82 WITH EASTBOUND PASSENGER
TRAIN #60 AT CONNEAUT, OHIO JULY 26, 1946

#5316 CLASS 4-6-4 EASTBOUND WITH PASSENGER
TRAIN #52 AT THE XC (NYC-PRR) CROSSING, ERIE,
PA. SEPT. 1951

26011 CLASS 4-8-4 EASTBOUND WITH PASSENGER
TRAIN # 90 AT THE XC (NYC-PRR) CROSSING,
‘ERIE, PA. SEPT. 1951

History of The Bessemer

and Lake Erie Railroad

The Bessemer and Lake Erie Railroad, incor--
porated December 31, 1900, occupies a strategic
position in one of the most important industrial
areas of the nation, reaching from Conneaut, Ohio,
on the shores of Lake Erie, south, to the steel
center of Pittsburgh.

Although the line from Conneaut to North Bess-
emer (the Bessemer’s Pittsburgh interchange point)
was built by different companies with different
purpeses in mind during the period 1869-1897, the
Bessemer route follows a remarkably straight path.
A straight line laid over the actual route would

" cross it at six places and would be only 111 miles

long, compared to the 140 miles of actual route.
(A map of the Bessemer.is shown on page 2.)

The Bessemer and Lake Erie encounters its
steepest grade south-bound as it climbs out of the
lake plain outside of Conneaut on a one percent
slope. It climbs to just under 1,100 feet near Mead-
ville Junction and thereafter runs overland usually
above 1,000 feet reaching over 1,300 feet mnear
Harrisville, approximately 86 miles south of Con-
neaut.



HEAVY DUTY LINE

The railroad is built on the scale of the job it
has to .do. Heavily ballasted roadbed is crowned
with 140-pound rail to support train loads in ex-
cess of 12,500 tons. Tonnage from 1936 to 1964
averaged 20.7 million and in 1942 (a World War
IT year), a record high of 27,423,204 tons. How-
ever, the tonnage for 1965 approached that record
with a total of almost 26,768,000 tons reflecting im-
provements in iron ore, coal, and coke traffic. In
addition to iron ore, coal, and coke, the Bessemer
moves large quantities of finished and semi-finished

steel, cement, sand, gravel, lumber, feed, scrap

iron, and a variety of finished products from heavy
and light industry located along the line.

The Bessemer’s piggyback service was started
in 1956, with service from the Pittsburgh district
through North Bessemer and from Butler to con-
necting lines at Shenango Junction and Wallace
Junction. This traffic has grown from 1,200 loads
in 1957 to 3,260 loads in 1964.

The Bessemer interchanges traffic with five
major trunk lines running between New York
and Chicago. Farthest north is the reciprocal
switching arrangement with lines serving Erie,
which the Bessemer reaches by way of trackage
rights over the Norfolk & Western (formerly the
Nickel Plate Road). Next is Wallace Junction,
where the Bessemer’s Erie branch leaves the N&W.
Near Greenville are the Osgood connection with
the New York Central System and the Shenango
connection with the Erie-Lackawanna and the
Pennsylvania Railroads. Just north of Butler is a
tie with the Western Allegheny Railroad. In But-
ler the Bessemer connects with the Baltimore and
Ohio and the Pennsylvania.

Farther south at the Allegheny River is a con-
nection with the Duquesne Light Company’s Ches-
wick and Harmar Railroad. At the North Besse-
mer terminus, cars are given to and received from
the Union Railroad, which serves the huge com-
-plex of steel plants and other industries in the
Monongahela valley.

The Bessemer and its predecessor companies had
acquired a total of 279 steam locomotives of which
11 were Shenango and Allegheny Railroad; 20 were
Pittsburgh, Shenango and Lake Erie Railroad; 3
were Meadville, Conneaut Lake and Linesville
Railroad; 50 were Pittsburgh, Bessemer and Lake
Erie Railroad; and 195 were Bessemer and Lake
Erie Railroad. All of these locomotives were op-

erated by the B&LE except 7, which had been

" scrapped by predecessor companies.

The period of greatest ownership was from
1919 to 1922, during which time 197 locomotives
were on the roster.
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Of 279 locomotives, 26 were American or 4-4-0
type; 25 were Moguls or 2-6-0; 7 were ten-
wheelers or 4-6-0; 119 were Consolidations or
2-8-0; 4 were Pacific or 4-6-2; 26 were switchers,
one 0-4-0, 13 0-6-0, and 12 0-8-0; 25 were Santa
Fes, 2-10-2; and 47 were Texas type, 2-10-4. They
are also classified as 221 freight, 32 passenger, and
26 switching. '

The builders participating in their construction
were Danforth Machine Company, 2; Cooke Loco-
motive Works, formerly the Danforth plant, 1;
Pittsburgh Locomotive Works, 45; American Lo-
comotive Company, Pittsburgh, formerly Pitts-
burgh Locomotive Works, 88; American Locomo-
tive Company, Schenectady Works, 34; Brooks
Locomotive Works, 13; Norris Locomotive Works,
1; and Baldwin Locomotive Works, 95.

All of these locomotives were retired by 1954.
One was scrapped by the PS&LE at Shenango;
17 were scrapped by the PS&LE, PB&LE, and
B&LE at Greenville; 5 were scrapped by the
Hodge Foundry at Greenville; 205 were sold to
various scrap dealers; 49 were sold to other com-
panies for reuse; and 2, numbers 154 and 643, have
been set aside at Greenville as historical exhibits.

Steam locomotive operation on the Bessemer
covered a span of 84 years from 1869 to 1953. The
last days steam locomotives operated in various
classes of service were — main line freight, May
31, 1952; . passenger, November 15, 1952; local
freight, November 18, 1952; Conneaut Branch
freight, November 26, 1952; and yard service, May
14, 1953. :

The following is a roster of all the steam loco-
motives that vere owned by the Bessemer and its
predecessor companies:

The first diesel locomotive owned and operated
by the Bessemer was a small 70-ton 530-h.p. West-
inghouse switcher purchased in 1936 for use at the
Erie terminal, where smoke from the steam loco-

motive was a problem. Thereafter no. diesels were -

purchased until 1949. In the meantime, however,
experiments and trials were made in the various
classes of service by six diesel locomotives of var-
ious types and horse-power borrowed from the
locomotive builders and from the Union Railroad.
In 1949, with information secured from the trials
and with data available from the experience of
other railroads, it was determined to go ahead with
the diesel program; and it was completed in the
years 1949-1953, resulting in a roster of 75 units
in 1953.

Since the beginning of diesel operation, some
changes have been made to the locomotive fleet.
Twenty-eight units have been retired, consisting
_of the one original 530-h.p. switcher, one Baldwin

17

s

s *‘.

#902, CLASS 4-62 WITH WESTBOUND PASSENGER
TRAIN #13 CROSSING THE SWANVILLE BRIDGE,
FAIRVIEW, PA. JUNE 1950
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and two American 1000-h.p. switchers, two Bald-
win 1500-h.p. switchers, and twenty-two Electro
Motive 1500-h.p. road units. Added to the roster
have been seven Electro-Motive 1800-h.p. 6-axle
road units in 1962; one Electro-Motive 800-h.p.
switcher in 1963; five Electro-Motive 1750-h.p.
and six American 2400-h.p. road switchers in 1964.

As was the case with steam locomotives, the
diesel locomotives are being improved for better
performance and maintenance. Among the im-
provements made are changes to the insulation and
wiring of generators and motors and changing the
motor-axle gear ratios on road locomotives to per-
mit them to haul greater tonnages, the application
of automatic sanders to reduce wheel slippage,
applying . dynamic brake regulators, and equipping
units for multiple-unit operation.

Since 1869 the Bessemer and its predecessors
have purchased, built, or converted from one type
to another approximately 33,000 freight cars —
300 by the Shenango and Allegheny; 2,200 by The
Pittsburgh, Shenango and Lake Erie; 5,000 by The
Pittsburgh, Bessemer and Lake Erie; and 25,500
by the Bessemer and Lake Erie. The Bessemer
presently has 6,547 hopper cars in service.

In 1901 the Bessemer and Lake Erie.entered a
period of increasing passenger travel and from
1909 to 1920 handled over one million passengers
per year. With the coming of the automobile and
improved highways, passenger operations gradu-
ally declined until passenger service was discon-
tinued in 1955.

Administrative headquarters for the Bessemer
are located in Pittsburgh, while the departmental
headquarters are at Greenville. These include the
Transportation, Maintenance of Equipment, Main-
tenance of Way, Stores, and Industrial Engineer-
ing Departments.

Operation of signals and switches on 135 miles
of the Bessemer Main. Line is controlled from
Greenville through a Centralized Traffic Control
system, in operation since 1956. This system has
permitted the removal of approximately 78 miles
of second track.

 The largest and most important terminal installa-
tion on the Bessemer is the harbor on Lake Erie
at Conneaut, Ohio, at the north end of the rail-
road. It is an enlargement and improvement of the
motith of Conneaut Creek located about two miles
‘west of the point where the Ohio-Pennsylvania
state line reaches the shore of the lake. This har-
bor had been used in a small way by fishing craft
and other small vessels since the early 1800’s.
There was then a short wooden wharf, a few small
buildings, and some poling for vessels to tie up to
along the west side of the creek, and the entrance
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was partly protected by piling. The first develop-
ment of Conneaut Creek as a harbor began with
the improvement of the entrance by the govern-
. ment under the Rivers and Harbors Act of March
2, 1829, which provided for an outlet for Conneaut
Creek 100 feet wide, protected by breakwaters and
a lighthouse. The record of Conneaut Harbor has
been one of continuous development and improve-
ment, which has made it one of the most import-
ant and efficient harbors on the Great Lakes.

Coal cannot be hauled by vessels over the lakes
during freezing weather, and in the past this
limited the number of months in which coal mines
could work. Then, too, during the shipping season
the rail movements of mined coal had to be coor-
dinated with the arrival and departure of the ships.
In June 1965 the Bessemer dedicated a new coal
storage and handling facility at Conneaut, which
has stabilized the coal producers’ operations and
employment by providing year-round ground stor-
age for their shipments. The ships cannot haul
coal during the winter, but the new port has space
to store two million tons of coal; thereby giving
the coal mines and the railroad a 12-month opera-
tion. The entire new facility is constructed to be
of model efficiency. From its remote-controlled

locomotive and push - button - operated conveyor -

belts to the 70-foot-high stacker and eight-bucket
reclaim wheel, every detail was planned for maxi-
mum utilization.

#621 CLASS H-1-d CONNEAUT, OHIO SEPT. 25, 1949
THE ONLY STEAM ENGINE EQUIPPED WITH CIN-
DER COLLECTOR
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#643 CLASS H-l-g GREENVILLE, PA. OCT. 12, 1958
LAST OF THE 2-104’s; HELD FOR HISTORICAL PUR-
POSES
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#645 CLASS 2-10-4 EMERGING FROM THE B&LE-NYC
ARCHES WITH AN ALBION BOUND ORE TRAIN,
CONNEAUT, CHIO JULY 14, 1947

S et o s TwiAty

#613 AND#630 CLASS 2-104’s BOOSTING AN ORE
DRAG THROUGH THE B&LE-NYC ARCHES No. 645
‘quS ON THE HEAD-END CONNEAUT, OHIO JULY 14,
1947



#645 AND 616, CLASS 2-10-4’s, BOOSTING AN ORE #612 CLASS 2-104, BOOSTING AN ORE DRAG. =636 IS
DRAG AT THE B&LE-NYC ARCHES No. 621 WAS ON ON THE HEAD-END. CONNEAUT, OHIO DEC. 3, 194§
THE HEAD-END. CONNEAUT, OHIO SEPT. 25, 1949

AUG. 15, 1964 #755 BEFORE BEING SENT WEST FOR OCT. 14, 1964 REMOVING PANEL TRACT FROM THE
REFURBISHING GONDOLA CAR

AUG. 22, 1964 LOOKING WEST FROM STREET, SHOW- ) FRONT VIEW OF #7535
ING GRADER NEAR SPUR SECTION

SEPT. 26, 1964 LOOKING EAST, BALLAST AND RAILS REAR VIEW OF TRAIN, NORTH SIDE
BEING PUT INTO POSITION

20



CONNEAUT GCHAPTER

GCONNEAUT, OHIO



